CF Polo Park

A VISUAL HISTORY OF CF POLO PARK

The Evolution of Winnipeg's Most Enduring Shopping Centre

Updated for Cctober 2024

For more than sixty-five years, CF Polo Park has been one of the most Iconic shopping
destinations In Winnipeg. Established In 1959, we are one of the oldest Cadillac Falrview
shopping malls. Today, we are also the largest Indoor mall In Manitoba, and our property Is host
to around 200 retallers and services.

What follows Is a visual history of the mall and the surrounding property—from our beginnings as
an open-air shopping centre, through the roof enclosure, additions, and renovations—all the way
up untll today.
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%% it Polggark

Polo Park logos throughout the years.
(Clockwise from fop-left: ‘505 & 605, lote-"/0s, early-"80s,
mid-"80s to early 2000s, mid-2000s to 2010s, mid-2010s to present)

The Racetrack: 1925—1956

Polo Park was a horse racing venue sltuated at the corner of Portage Avenue and St. James
Street In Winnipeq. It was bullt by R. James Speers, and operated from 1925 untll 1956. Following
the acquisition of the future grounds of Assinibola Downs, the Polo Park venue was demolished.

David Slater Limited acquired the Polo Park property and developed It Into a shopping cenire
with architectural firm Green, Blanksteln, Russell & Assoclates (GBR). From the 1960s onward, It
would be managed by the Fairview Corporation, and eventually as Cadillac Falrview following
Falrview's merger with the Cadillac Development Corporation In 1974.



Historical display regarding the Polo FPark racetrack, located inside of Polo North.
Photo from CF Polo Park Guest Services.
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Polo Park racetrack, images from Herftage Winnipeg (heritagewinnipeg.com).



Crowds at Polo Park racetrack on October 23 1943,
Photo by George Hunter, Canadian Heritage Photography Foundation.

Polo Park areag panorama circa 1954

Photfo provided by Jehare Stooke, from Retro 5i James Facebook group



The Open Air Era: 1959—1963

Polo Park in the initial stages of construction.
From CF Polo Park archives

Concept illustration of the finished shopping mall
From Winnipeg Architecture Foundation



Scale model of the proposed shopping centre and surrounding development
Winnipeg Tribune, May 5 1959

Simpsons-Sears

Working In conjunction with David Slater Limited was Polo Park’s primary anchor,
Simpsons-Sears. This 270,000-square-foot department store was constructed on the southwest
side of the centre, and remains one of the oldest portions of the Polo Park complex.
Groundbreaking took place In 1957, excavatlion and construction began soon after In 1958. The
store opened on May 6 1959, three months before the rest of the mall was completed.

Simpsons-Sears also maintained an automotive service centre on the west side of thelr bullding.
This would expand to Include a garden centre and a marina.

Simpsons-5ears under construction in 1958.
Photos from Retro St James.



The Polo Park site while under construction
Photo from Old Manitoba, The Way It Once Was!

Polo Park Shopping Centre during final stages of construction in 1959
Here, Simpsons-Sears hod already opened prior to the remainder of the mall being finished.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives



Mall layout

Unlike today, the mall did not have a full second storey, nor was It enclosed. Instead, Polo Park
began as an open air shopping centre which called to mind visuals of a town square or
community market.

Designed by Hans Peter Langes and bullt by Peter Leltch Construction Limited, Polo Park
conslsted of a main concourse stretching from south to north, with Simpsons-Sears at the
southwest corner, and Dominion and Loblaws at the northernmost point. More than thirty other
retallers lined the walkways. In the centre court, there was a large rectangular fountain pool.
Flower beds, benches, and garbage cans were placed throughout the mall. Loudspeakers were
Installed to play muzak. The support posts were a bright yellow, matching with the large Polo
Park sign at the south entrance.

There were four entrances—one at the south next to SiImpsons-Sears, another at the west on the
other side of the Simpsons-Sears bullding, one just east of centre court, and one at the north
between Dominion and Loblaws.

Like Simpsons-Sears, both Dominion and Loblaws opened before the rest of the mall. Dominion
opened on June 10 1959, and Loblaws opened a week later on June 17,

Simpsons-Sears Installed a ramp to thelr underground loading dock outside the west entrance. At
the time, Ness Avenue did not go through to St. James Sireet. As a result, the west parking lot
was likely not prioritized In the way It Is today. The lots had animal-themed signage to help guests
locate thelr vehicles.

The original second storey was a U-shaped office space Just above centre court, which was
accessed by a stalrcase on the east side of the bullding (behind the current Guest Services
Centre).



Grand opening

DOMIMION STORES LTD.
LOBLAW GROCETERIAS CO. LTD.
5 5 ERESGE CO. LTD:
ZELLER'S LIMITED
SALLY SMOPS LTD.
| UsITED COWGAR STORES LTD.
G. TRMBLYM LTD.
BATA SHOE COD. OF CAMADA
AGMEW SURPASS SHOE COD. LTD.
CAMADIAN BAMNYE OF COMMERCE -
MATIOMAL-RADEX LTD.
FAREWC CENTRE LTD.
THE LIGUOR CONTRDL COMMISSION

GEMEER & SOMS LTD.

PERTH DRY CLEAMERS LTD.

DAYTOM OUTFITTING CD. LTD.
WASSOM'S BOWLING ALLEY

FLODES MODERME

REME'S FOR GIFTS

HAMFORD-DREEWTTT | SUBURBAN ) LIMITED
REWARD SHOES LTD.

BROADWAY FLORISTS

EMPMRE WALLPAPER & PAINT CO. LTD,
Jr TOF TAILORS LTD.
HENEY BIRKS AMD SOMS | MAM. ) LTD.
REITaAM'S ITD.

UNCLE JOHMNS HOMY SHOP

SWELT SIXTEEM LTD.
STRAIMS CO. LTD. i
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FASHIONETTE HAIR STYLTSTS
BCHARDSOMN BROS. LTD.
MOMNARCH [UMBER COMPANY LIMITED

B
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PENMINGTONS LTD,

GORDI'S DELMCATESSEN

© AEN WORD TRAVEL SERVICE
CARDINAL SHIRT & TIE SHOPS

MARIO'S HAIRDRESSMG LTD.

PAULNE JOHMSOM CAMDIES

DALLAIRD'S LIMITED
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Polo Parlc grand opening announcement (left). Closeup of the tenant listing (right).
Winnipeg Tribune, August 19 1955,

Polo Park Shopping Centre opened to the public on August 20 1959, with forty retallers and
services prepared for the crowds of exclted shoppers.

Manitoba premler Duff Roblin and Winnlpeg mayor Stephen Juba participated In the opening
ceremonles, hosted by CBC presenter Fred Davis. During the ensuing week, Polo Park hosted

attractions including pony rides, prize giveaways, clown performances, and a high-wire act
performed by aerlalist La Norma.



Polo Park family of fine stores

1. Simpaseni-Sears Lmitad 23, Empire Paint & Wallpapar

2, Packard Show Store Co. bd,

1. Tip Tep Tallers Ltd. 24, Tniler's Limited

A, Malyreux . 25, Uniled Ciger Slares Lid.

% Braodwoy Florsi 24, Pole Park Bowling Alleys

4. Straina Ce, Lid. 27, Fashionetim Hair Siylish

7. Sally dhops Lid, 8. Henry Birks end Jons [C-8

. Fabeic Cantra Lid, o 7%, Peanington’s Limited
" g, Agrnew Surpass Shoe Store Lid, 30, Sweet Eatesn Lid,

18, Beitmen's Limited 31, Gordi's Dalicolessen

11. Bata Shoe Co, of Conade Lid, 32, Rewaord Shees Limted

17. 5. 5. Kresge Ce. Lid. 13, Dayten Quifitiing Ca. Lid.
13, Mational-Radex Limiled 14 Genser end Sons Limited
14, Uncia Jokn's Hebby Saop 35, Parth Dye Wearks Lid,

15, Richardson Brea. Lid, 34, Reslaurant

14, Tamblyn Drug Store 37. Honfard -Drewitt [ Seburban)
17. Menarch lumber Co, Lid, Limited

18, Canadien Faed Praducts Lid, 18, Rene's Tor Gifts

1%, Floors Maderns 39, Canadian Bank of Commerce
0. Loblow Grocsisrios Ca. Lid. o

21, Domision Siores Limied A B, . —Office Buildings

21, Trave' Agency ) O e Mbel

Directory of tenants at Polo Park, along with proposed developments on the east side.
Winnipeg Free Press, June 9 1955,

Among the original stores were a number of tenants that would stay with the mall for many years
to come. These Included Broadway Florists, Fashlonette, Mario’s Halrdressing, O'Brien Travel,
Perth’s, S.S. Kresge Co., Tip Top Tallors, and Wasson's Bowling Alley, and Zellers.

Of the original tenants, Fashlonette Hair Stylists (now Revolutions), Tip Top Tallors, and Wasson's
Bowling Alley (now Polo Park Bowling Centre) remain In 2024. Reltmans has also maintained

spots In the mall over the years, most recently opening up a new location on the upper level In
the north wing.



Looking north toward centre court on opening day, August 20 1959,
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.

Crowds gathered on opening day (leftl.
Mayor Stephen Juba and Premier Duff Roblin of the opening ceremony (right).



Photos from CF Polo Park archives.

Looking west towards centre court,
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.
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1958, looking southwest.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.

Artwork

A handful of artists were commissioned by GER to design a varlety of modern artworks for
display In the shopping centre. The concept of a shopping mall was still relatively new, and Polo
Park's developers belleved that contemporary aesthetics were of great Importance to the mall's
presentation.

Each of these art pleces functioned not only as decoration but also as landmarks for shoppers
throughout the mall.

In total, there were four artists Involved: George Swinton, Duane Eichholz, Richard Willlams, and
James Willer. Together, they produced elght works for Polo Park.



Artists (from left fo right): James Willer, Duane Eichholz, and Richard Williams.
Winnipeg Free Press, August 15 1958,

George Swinton designed Acrobats, a tall concrete sculpture with abstract forms. This plece was
displayed In the middle of the centre court fountaln. Swinton also designed a blue glass mosalc
for the exterlor of the Simpsons-Sears bullding.

On Acrobats, Swinton said, “My sculpture Is Intended to be strictly functional. It Is a fountain with
the play of acrobats as subject matter. Mothing more nor less profound than this Is Intended. The
play of the acrobats has a definite assoclation with the play of water. No doubt those who cannot
see the play of acrobats will recognize this plece as a fountain.”
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Acrobats by George Swinton in centre court, looking north towards Winnipeg Stadium.
Photo from Retro 5t James, colour-corrected,
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Simpsons-5Sears with the mosaic by George Swinton.
Photo from Old Manitoba, The Way It Once Was!

Richard Willlams designed Mock Wall, a concrete plece, and Birds in o Bluff, a wooden sculpture.
Both of these were located at the north end of the mall, near the exit between the Dominion and
Loblaws stores.

On Mock Wall, Willlams sald, “l was concerned with designing two simple Interlocking elements
which could be used to construct a wall-ike sculptural unit—not a somber monument but a form
to stimulate the iImagination. The plece helps to define a walkway between two stores, and If at
times It seems to participate In the bundle-laden rush from door to door, this Is an aspect of both
Its function and its humour.”

On Birds in a Bluff, he sald, “There should be no difficulty In recognizing the subject, but It must
be remembered that this Is a sculpture In wood and not an ornithologlical study. My Intention was
to express the simple charm of the subject In terms of robust form fit for this land.”

Mock Wall (feff) and Birds In a BIUff (right] by Richard Williams.
Photos from the University of Manitoba digital collections.



James Willer designed Screens—a serles of two concrete sculptures which were displayed on
the west and east entrances to the centre. The eastern portion depicted two roosters crowing at
the sun, and the west sculpture featured an owl taking flight.

Willer spoke on Screens, saying, “The screens are there to tell customers East from West. Two
cocks crowing against a rising sun Indicate East. Conversely, an owl preparing for flight shows the
West entrance to the ‘Centre’. The function of orlentating people fulfilled, | was happy enough to
fling blocks of concrete across suspension wires allowing them to hang vertically to form a
transparent screen. | should not be disappointed If most viewers bulld visually block-by-block
until they achleve a final comprehension of the screens. The body of the owl Is negative, so Is the
sun. The cocks are cut out of the rays of the sun. Do not be confused by the play of negative and
positive.”

Screens by James Willer. East portion (leff), and West portion {right).
Left photo from CF Polo Park archives, right photo from Winnipeg Tribune, August 19 1955

Duane Eichholz designed Bronze [ady, which was displayed close to the middle of the mall.
Unfortunately, very little Is known about this sculpture or Its location, as It was not documented In
detall.

On Bronze Lady, Elchholz was quoted as saylng, “The ‘Bronze Lady’ Is a ‘reality’ abstracted from
nature and tradition. It Is meant to be experienced as something richer than a nervous neon sign.”

James Willer also collaborated with Elchholz for the Sundial, which stood at the south end of the
complex, adjacent to the Simpsons-Sears bullding.

0On the Sundial, Willer elaborated, “l ted to collaborate form and function. A sundial Is a precise
time machine (Ideally anyway). | therefore concelved a clean and geometric form. Life or force or



drama (whatever you like) | Infused Into these pure elements, (a rectangular blade and an
elliptical ring), by throwing them unsupported Into the air. For practical possibility of this, | am
Indebted to the engineers of Supercrete Limited. That Is thelr achlevement. Mine, | believe to be
the separation of the blade from the ring, substituting thereby a forceful relationship In place of a
physical one. Dramatic simplicity was my aim.”

The above quotes from the artists are transcribed from CF Polo Park archival documents.
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Eichholz works on his sculpture Bronze Lady (left), and Eichholz and Willer’s Sundial (right).

Winnipeg Free Fress, August 15 1955
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Diagraom showing the approximate location of each piece in relation to the 2022 layout,
Note: the precise location of Bronze Lady is currently unknown, but has been documented as

close to centre court.

Cinema

Polo Park cinema opened In June 1962 on the St. James Street side of the bullding next to the
west entrance.

The West portlon of Willer's Screens was relocated Inside of the cinema lobby, where It
decorated the stairwell.



The Polo Park cinema lobby (left). Cinema exterior (right).
Photos from Old Manitoba, The Way It Once Was!

Concessions (left), and auditorium {right) in the Polo Park cinema.
Photos from Old Manitoba, The Way It Once Was!



Closeup of the West segment of Screens, relocated to the cinema stainwvell
Photo from University of Manitoba digital collections.

The Original Pancake House




The Original Pancake House, pictured here in the 1960s.
From the City of Winnipeg Archives

On September 9, 1961, the Original Pancake House opened thelr Polo Park location on the

southeast side of the mall. They would remain there untll 2002, when they would move across
Empress Street, attached to the new Clarion hotel.
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Official Opening Tumurrﬂw

Evprv 25th Bill will be paid for by National Cash Register all day
tomorrow. First 500 Kiddies will receive FREE COKES with meals

Opening announcement for the Original Pancake House in its Polo Park location.
Winnipeg Free Press, September 8 1961



Polo Park during the open air era, viewing the west side of the complex.
From a 1962 postcard, though photo likely taken in 1955,
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In the early 19605, Ness Avenue was extended to 5t James Street.
This allowed for easier access to the mall and the surrounding Polo Park area.
Photo from Retro 5t James.



The Roof Goes On: 1963—1968

it's the talk of the town . ..

the NEW! POLO PARK
ENCLOSED MALL
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1963 enclosed Polo Park concept illustration from GBR archives
via Winnipeg Architecture Foundation

In the early-1960s, It was decided to enclose Polo Park Shopping Centre with a roof, along with
modern amenities like heating and alr conditioning.

This project cost $500,000, which would be eguivalent to more than $4.5 million In 2022. Polo
Park became one of the first malls to be enclosed In Canada.
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Initial stoges of the roof addition in the south wing. Basement offices staircase still enclosed.

December 14 1963,
Winnipeg Free Press, September 4 2015,

The roof Installation began In 1963, so the shopping centre would be shielded from the elements
for the hollday season.

During this renovatlon, some of the existing artwork was moved or scrapped. For Instance, both
contributions by Richard Williams, Mock Wall and Birds in o Bluff, were demolished.

George Swinton’s Acrobats was moved from centre court to the western exterlor outside
Entrance #2. Duane Eichholz’s Bronze [ady Is thought to have been removed around this time as
well, though Its ultimate fate Is unknown.

The mall Installed a new fountaln jet In the centre court pool with new floral decor surrounding It
Planters remalned throughout the shopping centre. Many of the support posts In the mall were
repalnted or enclosed.



Around this time, the basement offlces were constructed. The Offices 66 section was bullt below
the south wing near centre court, with Its entrance steps Installed In front of Agnew Surpass. The
Offices 100 sectlon was bullt below the southeast corner near the Portage Avenue entrance, and
was accessed by a set of stairs across the hall from Simpsons-Sears.

Centre court in the mid-1960s after the mall’s enclosure.
Photo from University of Manitoba digital collections.



South wing and basement offices staircase during the 1960s, following roof completion.
City of Winnipeg Archives Photograph Collection.



Patrons wait around the Sundlal ot the south entrance.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives

Arrival of Eaton’s: 1968—1978

Relocation of Dominion and Loblaws, and refurbishment

1968 marked a major change for Polo Park—the arrival of a new anchor store, Eaton’s.

To accommodate this 212,000-square-foot department store, the mall underwent a large
expansion on Its north side. The Dominlon and Loblaws stores closed and relocated to the east
wing. In thelr place, the mall added new tenant spaces, an additlonal entrance, and a court area
In front of the new Eaton’s store.

Furthermore, the mall was given a makeover with brand new terrazzo-style tilework. This
replaced the mall's plain concrete floors It had Inherited from Its open air days. Bird Construction
carrled out these renovatlons In conjunction with Trevl Tlle, Randall Plumbing & Heating, among
others.

A semi-permanent Customer Service Centre was also bullt In the middle of the east wing, beside
the basement stalrs to the bowling alley.






Construction of the new Eaton’s building at the north end of the mall.
Photos from Retro 5t James



Construction crews dig the foundations of Eaton’s court
From Retro 5t James

EATON'S polo park

The completed Eaton’s store at the north end of Polo Park




Photo from Retro 5t Jomes
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East side of Polo Park in 1967 Panorama showing the construction of the new east wing,
containing the Dominion and Loblaws locations on the right-hand side of the photo.
From the City of Winnipeg Archives.

Completed Dominion and Loblaws stores in the east wing expansion.
15974 - Archives of Manitoba, CH 0267 Government phofographs.



East wing, facing the Empress Street entrance, during the holidays.

Loblaws on left, Dominion on right.
From CF Polo Park archives.
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Polo Park aerial photo from the late-1960s.
From the Conadian Heritage Photography Foundation, photo by George Hunter
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The Wonderful, New World of Shopping...

Aanaw Surpass
Alain Fashions
Bank of Commerce
Bata Shoes

Barher Shop

H. Birks & Sons
Bowrings Gifls
Broadway Florists
Caesar's Palace Resl
Card Shap

Coles Ronks
Gontessa Fashions
Coquekte Shoes
Allairds

Daytan’s

Daominion Storg

T. EATOM CO. LTD.
Fabric Centre
Fashionette Hairstylists
Gensar & Sons
Gordi's Restaurant
Hammond Organ
Hobby Horse

Halt Renfrew

Hopa Chest
Heousehald Finance
Jude Gifts

Krespa's

Lawra Secord
Liguor Store

Lokslaw Groo,
Mario's Hairdressing
Pace Cinema

Mational Radex
Mational Trast
Mut Housa
'Brien Travel
Pancake House
Paacock Corsetry
Pennington’s
Peopla’s Credit Jewellers
Pearth's Cleaners
Plush Puppy
Reilman's

Hene's Gifts
Reweard Shoes
Ricki's

Sally Shops
Zherain Willlams
SIMPS0ONS-5EARS
Singer Co.

Sidney 1. Robinscn
Strain’s

Tamblyn's

Tip Top Fairseather
Town 'n Country
United Cigar Store
Wig Shoppe
Willson Stationers
Zallars

Watch for opening
Watch for cpening
Watch for opening
Watch for cpening
Service Area
Wasson's Bowling

at POLO PARK

ra

T. EATON CO, LTD.
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D NEW STORES & SERVICES




The 1968 Polo Park directory, following the addition of Eaton’s at the north.
From a May 1968 press kit, CF Polo Park archives.

Another angle of the then-new Eaton’s department store at Polo Park.



Eaton’s court and the northwest entrance shortly affer construction.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.




The revamped centre court following the 1968 refurbishment (lefi).
North wing looking south after the renovation (right).

Shoppers in Eaton’s court. Eaton’s 100th anniversary banners visible over sfore enfrance, 1965,



L ooking north outside Agnew Surpass and Reitmans, in 1968,
From Retro 5t. James. Archives of Manifoba, CH 0267 Government photographs.



Simpsons-5Sears and Entrance #2 in 1965,

Photo from Refro 5t. James. Archives of Manitoba, CH 0267 Government photographs.



Scan of g Polo Park postcard circa 1968, looking northwest.



“Putting the ‘Park’ into Polo Park™. 1978—1986

“We're putting the park into polo park”..

Concept illustrations for the 1978 renovation.
Scan from CF Polo Park archives.

In 1978, the mall underwent a handful of smaller-scale changes, namely the introduction of more
greenery Into the shopping centre. This was nicknamed the “nature renovation program” and
also Included skylights, a new paint scheme, along with park style benches.



South wing near the 66 Offices staircase following the 1978 renovation
From CF Polo Park archives



The new centre court fountain piece during the remodel (left), and after {right)
Photos from CF Polo Park archives.

In Fall 1980, Crock & Block Restaurant & Tavern opened on the northwest comer of the property.
In January 1982, Chi-Chi's restaurant opened beside It. By 1983, Crock & Block would be
replaced by Finger's restaurant, and by 1994, Chl-Chl's reopened as Gringo’s.



South entrance in 1985,
From Dave Johnson, Winnipeg Free Press, March 7 2022,



“Share The Excitement” - The Upper Level Expansion: 1986—2006

From 1985 until 1986, Polo Park underwent Its most ambitious expansion to date. This $75-million
project added a second floor to the mall and took elghteen months to complete. Polo Park
Shopping Centre and the retallers within remained open during the process.

The renovation Included:

More than 100 new retallers

A food court on the second level.

A massive two-level parking garage on the east side.

Repaved and rezoned ground-level parking.

Three large glass domes over each of the major court areas.
Skylights over the main concourse.

Seven escalators, a ‘panoramic’ glass elevator, and a spiral staircase.
A brand new facade and decorative mall entrances.



Architectural scale model displaying the proposed interior redesign for Polo Parlk.
Photo from University of Manitoba digital collections.
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Polo Parlc during construction for the 1985/1986 remodel.
Photos from CF Polo Park archives.



Transit terminal

At the same time, Cadillac Falrview worked In conjunction with Winnipeg Transit and the
Manitoba Department of Urban Affairs on a new bus terminal Installed In the south parking lot.
This change centralized many of the bus routes that had stops In and around the Polo Park
property. It aimed to reduce traffic congestion around the mall and to streamline the bus service.

Opening of the Polo Park Winnipeg Transit terminal, July 31 1986.
Fhotos from CF Polo Park archives.



NOTE:
Routes 11 & 12

terminal)

Transit
- Shelters

use the t side
bus shﬁfiﬂwuhﬂ
stop & Eaton's

Comman stop for oll routes
" 24,26, 66,78.79,97 .

Diagram of the new fransit terminal.

Winnipeg Free Fress, August 12 1986,
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The Polo Park transit terminal in the late-1980s,
Photo from Retro 5t James.

Mall layout

The second floor conslists of a large mezzanine open to the ground level below, as was common
for shopping mall designs of the 1980s. This second level was bullt above the roofs of the original
tenant spaces, with short staircases and ramps that lowered to match the second levels of Sears
and Eaton’s.

A palr of escalators was Installed at the north end outside of Eaton’s, another set was Installed In
centre court on elther side of the glass elevator, and a third set stood Just outside of the Sears
Interior entrance. Finally, a single escalator and a spiral staircase attached to the walkway halfway
between Eaton’s and centre court.

The northeast mall entrance was closed to accommodate new tenant spaces. Two additional mall
entrances were Installed, leading from the upper deck of the east parking garage. Entrance #5
would lead Into the food court, and Entrance #6 would enter near Eaton’s. Additionally, both
Brettons and Zellers had thelr own dedicated entrances from the parking garage.



The 66 Offices recelved a new set of stairs shifted closer to the middle of the hallway. There
were also gazebo-style tenant spaces bullt along the main concourse.

The east wing was almost completely rebullt. Safeway relocated across the hall to the former
Loblaws space, and the existing Safeway unit was demolished to make room for new tenants In
the expanded wing. The Customer Service Centre was removed and replaced with an
Information booth south of centre court. The staircase to the bowling alley was also reconfigured
during this time.

The Eaton’s bullding recelved a rear expansion which Increased floorspace and also connected
the back of the bullding to the new parking deck.

New 66 Offices staircase and sign (left)
Accessorfes refailer Bandits in the gazebo unit, north side of centre court (fop right)
One of the glass domes (bottom right).
Photos from University of Manifoba digital collections.
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Spiral stafrcase and north wing ascending escalator, 1986,
Photos from University of Manifoba digital collections.

Numerous planters and fountains were placed throughout the mall. There was a circular fountain
In front of Sears, a smaller one was sltuated In the middle of the spiral stalrcase, and the largest
fountaln was In centre court between the escalators and the glass elevator.

Willer and Eichholz’s Sundial sculpture was removed. This made way for a garden area and two
large glass towers at the south entrance. Situated Inside the largest tower was the restaurant
Pete & Marty’s, part of the mall’s selectlon of vendors In the new food court on the second level.
The smaller glass tower, east of the enirance, contained the staircase and after-hours doors to
the restaurant.

Among the food court tenants were New York Fries, Orange Jullus, and Taco Time—all of which
still occupy the same spaces In the food gallery today!
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Winnipeg Free Fress, August 12 1986.

The new directory of stores as printed in the




The new pylon sign along Portage Ave advertising the reopening, 1986.
FPhoto from CF Polo Park archives.



The grand re-opening ceremony in the brand-new centre court, August 13 1986.
Winnipeg Free Press, September 4 2015,
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Ribbon cutting during the grand re-opening, August 13 1986,
From CF Pole Park archives.



Shoppers gather around the Sears court fountain during the grand re-opening festivities.
August 13 1986.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.



The Sears Shoe Repair, Key cutting & Boke Shop near Entrance #1
From CF Polo Park archives.



Shoppers descend the spiral staircase at Zellers court, 1986.
From CF Polo Park archives.






Patrons seated in the new food gallery.
From CF Polo Park archives.



Patrons af the new Bretfons store.
From CF Polo Park archives



Angles on centre court, late-1980s.

From Retro 5t James.



South entrance after the 1986 renovation.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives,

5t James Street side of the building, 1986.
Photo from University of Manitoba digital collections.



Aerial view of Polo Park Shopping Centre from 1986.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.

Artwork

During construction, the Sundial was demolished. Meanwhile, Acrobats was relocated at the
request of George Swinton’s family. Today, Acrobats Is the only surviving art plece commissioned
for Polo Park when It first opened. You can see It In Its current home on Webb Place, behind
Portage Place Shopping Centre.



Acrobats in 2022, relocated to Webb Place in downtown Winnipeg (lefi)
Original diograms for Acrobats (right).
Left photo from CF Polo Park Guest Services, diagrams from Retro 5t James.

The renovation also Included a new plece of artwork. Created by Willlam Lishman, the Polo Pony
pays tribute to the horse racing venue that once stood on the property. Polo Pony was displayed
In the middle of the food court, before a later relocation to the spiral stalrcase between centre
court and Eaton's.

Lishman’s Polo Pony in its original location in the food court (lefi),
and after it was moved to the spiral staircase (right).
Photos from CF Polo Park archives.



Further alterations

Arfter the departure of Pete & Marty's, the restaurant space In the food court was then divided into
Moxles and A&W. Moxles took up the majority of the Pete & Marty's floorspace while the A&W
was sltuated In the glass tower above Entrance #1.

In 1996, Brettons went out of business. Thelr Polo Park store closed In 1994, and the unit that
housed them was amalgamated Into the Zellers unit The Zellers main entrance was moved over
to the former Brettons entrance, and more retaller space opened where Zellers once led Into the

mall.
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Centre court in the 1990s. Zellers entrance visible after its relocation.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.
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South entrance with A&W in the upper level (leff), and upper level of centre court (right).
Fhotos from CF Polo Park archives.

During the 2000s, a number of planters and tree plits throughout the centre were removed to
Increase walkabllity and floor space for events. Similarly, the Sears court fountain and the spiral
stalrcase fountaln were both taken out. The centre court fountaln was also filled.

In 2003, the ascending escalator by the spiral stalrcase was removed to Increase Klosk tenant
space. The centre court escalators were replaced In spring 2005.

Centre court after the fountain was filled (left).

The gardens outside of Entrance #1 (right).
Photos from CF Polo Park archives.



Atop the south escalators facing northeast in 2005 (lefi)
Spiral staircase area after the escalator, fountain, and planters were removed (right)
Photos from CF Polo Park archives




The food court in the 2000s,
Photos from CF Polo Park archives.



e R

P lPancakehHouse:

The Original Pancake House in 2001, before its mowve across the street (top).
And after its mowve to the Clarion hotel (botfom).
Top photo from Retro 5t James.
Boftom photo from Clarion Hotel and Suites Winnipeg.



Polo Park Guest Services Cenfre in 2006
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.



Cinema closure & Silver City

Closer view of the cinema doors and Entrance #2, winter 1986.
Photo from University of Manitoba digital collections.

Polo Park Cinema closed In 1995, For many years the space was left vacant, with the main level
lobby closed off to the public and the basement auditorium used for storage.

In the late-2000s, the main floor of the unit was redeveloped Into Its current tenants: an
Insurance brokerage (then Ryan Gateway, now Hub International) and Stitch-It Clothing
Alterations & Dry Cleaning. The basement auditorium would later be partially repurposed for the
new Aritzla locatlion In 2022, and otherwise used for storage.

Four years after Polo Park Cinema’s closure, another movle theatre arrived at the mall. The
theatre was constructed at the northwest edge of the property, In the former location of Gringo’s
and Finger’s restaurants.

In December 1999, the 14-screen, 90,000-square-foot Silver City multiplex opened to the public.
With an arcade, food vendors, and room for more than 3,000 patrons In stadium-style seating,
Sliver City became one of the dominant movie theatres In Winnlpeg. In 2016, It would be
rebranded as Scotlabank Theatre.



—

Silver City multiplex under construction in 1999 (lefi). Silver City, pictured in 2010 (right).
Photos by Modern Acrylic Systems (modernacnylic.com).

Eaton's closure

With the bankruptcy of Eaton’s in 1999, the chaln began closing a number of thelr stores. The
Polo Park location would close In 2002, after an attempt at rebranding as “eatons” (In lowercase
with no apostrophe) following an acquisition by Sears. The bullding also housed Sears during
their refurbishment. Sears relocated back to thelr original space before the end of 2003. The
Eaton’s bullding was then leased to the Hudson's Bay Company.

During the 2003 makeover of the Sears bullding, George Swinton's glass mosalc was torn down.
The Sears automotive service centre In the west lot closed the same year, and was demolished

soon after.

Hudson's Bay (then simply “The Bay™) would host its grand opening on October 30 2003.

ey

Sears, temporarily occupying the Eaton’s building.



Winnipeg Free Press, July 5 2003.

Concept illustration for The Bay in the former Eaton’s building.
Winnipeg Free Press, July 5 2003.

Sears building in 2003, after its renovation.

Photo by John Dobbin from Observations, Reservations, Conversations.



Earls, Pier 1 Imports, Joey's, and EQ3

In 2001, Earls restaurant opened on the southeast corner of the property.

In 2004, two new stores were erected on the pad site on the southwest corner of the property:
Pler 1Imports and EQ3. A year later, the Joey’s restaurant (now simply ‘Joey’) was bullt next to
them.

Pler 1 Imports would close In late 2019, redeveloped Into a TD Bank by spring 2023. EQ3 would
move Into the mall in autumn 2021, leaving the bullding avallable for temporary tenants such as
Spirit Halloween In 2022,

Earls resfourant in 2008,
From Google Maps, Google Street View

The Pier 1 Imports, EQ3, and Joey’s pad site in 20039
From Google Maps, Google Street View



“The Evolution Has Begun™ - The New Face of Polo Park:
2006—2014
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South Entrance under redevelopment in early 2007
FPhoto from CF Polo Park archives.

Between 2006 and 2008, Polo Park underwent another major renovation. This Included an
expansion to the south end of the bullding, which reorganized the food court, the south
escalators, as well as the retallers In the south wing.



South entrance (Entrance #1) following the renovation.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.



The redesigned interior in 2007 during the later phases of construction.
FPhoto from CF Polo Park archives.

Mall layout

This $30 million renovation provided a new space for Sport Chek on the main level. The south
escalators were moved from beslde Sears to where Entrance #1's glass tower once stood.

The AEW housed In the tower relocated to where the south escalators were. This required the
floor and a portion of the skylights to be filled In. Moxles relocated to a larger space above the
new Sport Chek store, Increasing the seating area In the food court and allowing for a number of
new food vendors.

The Offlces 100 space below the southeast end of the mall was converted Into the new
basement shop floor for Sport Chek.

In addition to the structural overhaul, the mall was given a new colour scheme which eschewed
the ‘80s-style decor In favour of a sleeker, more modern design. The existing floor tiles were
completely ripped up and replaced. The majority of the remaining greenery throughout the mall
was also removed to Improve walkabllity and wayfinding.

The spiral stalrcase was torn down. its accompanying walkway was widened to accommodate
new soft seating and Increase walking space.



William Lishman's Polo Pony sculpture was relocated once again, this time finding a home Just
south of centre court near the 66 Offices basement stalrcase, where It stands today.
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The Polo Pony following its relocation to its present home.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.

Safeway move

In 2008, Safeway moved out of Polo Park, relocating to a new bullding In the Madison Square
shopping centre on Ness Avenue. The vacated space provided another major opportunity for

redevelopment. This renovation altered a number of tenant spaces In the east wing on the main
level.

Starting In 2009, the hallway was expanded, removing five existing tenant spaces In front of the
Safeway unit. These retallers and services—Ryan Gateway Insurance, Nutrition House, Regls Halr
Salon, Independent Jewellers, and Marlin Travel—all relocated as a result.

The Safeway unit itself was divided Into two separate units: the largest became Forever 21, and
the smallest was occupled by BCBG Max Azrla.



el

Shoppers queue for the grand opening of Forever 21 in the newly renovated east wing.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.



50th Anniversary

Preparations underway for the 50th Anniversary celebration in centre court
FPhoto from CF Polo Park archives.

2009 marked Polo Park’s 50th anniversary. The mall hosted a celebratlion for the occaslon.

The celebrations congratulated the tenants that had been In the mall since It opened In August
1959, These tenants were:

Broadway Florists
Fashionette Halr Stylists
Perth’s

Polo Park Bowling Centre
Sears

Tip Top Tallors

Zellers

The anniversary events also Included a sculpture garden, historical displays, a fashion display,
and a performance by children's entertalner Al Simmons.
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Polo Park staff unveil the 50th anniversary plague.
From Winnipeg Free Press.

Sixteen plagues now encircle the base of the Polo Pony sculpture, each documenting a segment
of Polo Park history and commemorating the long-term tenants.
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The Polo Pony after the installation of the 50th Anniversary plagues.
FPhoto from CF Polo Park archives.



Garden display in centre court for the mall’s 50th anniversary.
FPhoto from CF Polo Park archives.

Former Sport Chek / Eaton’s Downstairs

With Sport Chek relocated to the south, the 24,000-square-foot unit they once occupled
(previously Eaton’s Downstalrs and S.I.R. prior to that) was redeveloped Into a space for the
McNally Robinson bookstore In 2008. Included In the new store was the Prairle Ink cafe, located
on the west side of the mall.
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Sport Chek exterior in 2006 before the renovation (top).
McNally Robinson exterior and Prairie Ink cafe (boftom lefi).
Interior entrance in 2008 (bottom right).
Photos from CF Polo Park archives.

This McNally Robinson location only lasted for two years before they vacated the unit in 2010.
However, the expansion remalned, acting as temporary leasing for seasonal retaller Calendar
Club. The space was taken over by Urban Planet In 201



Calendar Club inside the former McNally Robinson space.
Fhoto from CF Polo Park archives.

Urban Planet exterior (lefi). Interior entrance (right). 2071,
Fhotos from CF Polo Park archives.



Polo North

T

Photo from CF Polo Park archives.

Since Its closure In 2004 and demolition In 2006, the former site of the Winnipeg Arena
remalined vacant. Similarly in 2006, CTV left their nelghbourng studio bullding (previously
branded as CJAY-TV and CKY-DT) Just north of The Bay.

Between 2011 and 2013, both of these sites were redeveloped by Cadillac Falrview Into an
outdoor shopping complex called Polo North.

The former Winnipeg Arena site features Marshalls, Mark’s, and Western FInancial.

The former CTV property housed Corus Radio and thelr stations 680 CJOB, Power 97, and Peggy
99.1. It also contains Cora’s Breakfast restaurant, and Polo Park Dental Centre.

Like the theatre adjacent to It, Polo North Is considered part of the Polo Park property.




Broadcast building as CAY-TV [right), and as CKY-DT (lef)
Photos from Retro 5t James.

Polo North as viewed from Empress Street (top).
Corus building site (bottom left), Winnipeg Arena site (bottom right).
From Google Maps, Google Street View

CF Polo Park rebrand, anchor redevelopments: 2014—2024

The mall faced some major challenges through the 2010s and early 2020s.
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Zellers closure & new upper level east wing
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Hoarding in front of the former Zellers with concept art depicting the planned development.
FPhoto from CF Polo Park archives.
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Architectural render of the redevelopment connecting the north wing to the east wing.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.

In the early-2010s, Zellers began closing a number of Its retall stores, which Included the Polo
Park locatlon. The large unit that Zellers once occupled became vacant, and Polo Park embarked
on another major project to repurpose the area.

The new expanslon opened In October 2014, and Included space for more than twenty tenants,
new washroom facliities, and new skylights.

The expansion utllized the existing area to create a U-shaped hallway that led between where
Zellers and Brettons previously exited Into the mall. A large awning was erected over the
entrance closer to Hudson's Bay, where Eddie Bauer previously was.

The former Zellers exterlor entrance was covered up, with Anthropologie taking Its place In the
comer. The other parking lot entrance Into the former Brettons space was reconfigured Into
Entrance #7.

The new tenants Included Urban Outfitters, Tommy Gun’s Original Barbershop, Bestseller, Bench,
Fossil, Teavana, and Disney among others.



The second floor east wing, in the space formerly occupied by Zellers and Brettons.
Photo by Exco Electric Ventures (excoelectric.ca)



Property manager Deborah Green cuts the ribbon with the retailers, opening the new wing.
Fhoto from CF Polo Park archives.
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Second floor east wing in 2076,
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.



Enirance #7 following the redevelopment.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.

Rebrand and The Plaza @ Polo Park

In September 2015, Cadillac Falrview rebranded Its malls to Include “CF” In thelr name. Polo Park
Shopping Centre became CF Polo Park. This was done for brand consistency across all Cadillac
Falrview malls.

Also around this time, Cadillac Falrview worked with Shindico Realty to repurpose the former
Target bullding north of the mall. The Target had been bullt on the old Winnipeg Stadium
grounds. Unlike Polo North, this property would be developed separately as “The Plaza @ Polo
Park” or alternatively “Plaza at Polo.”

Currently, the Plaza at Polo Is home to 24-7 Intouch, HomeSense, PF. Chang's, Urban Behaviour,
and Winners.
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Target opened in October 2014, It closed in 2015 after Target Canada ceased operations.
From CTV News Winnipeg.

Plaza at Polo in 2021 (bottom)
From Google Maps, Google Street View



Sears closure and redevelopment

Sears during its final days, November 16 2017
FPhoto from CF Polo Park Guest Services.

Sears Canada went out of business In January 2018. The CF Polo Park store liquidated thelr stock
and fixtures before closing the preceding December. This presented another huge opportunity
for redevelopment.

Construction began In 2020. The Sears space was divided Into several new units, the largest of
which was the new EQ3 location on the main level. This new EQ3 store would open on October
29 2021.



The EQ3 store after the Sears building redevelopment in 2022,
Photo from CF Polo Park Guest Services.

In March 2022, the CF Polo Park management office moved from the 66 Offices In the basement
to the second level of the redeveloped Sears bullding.




The new management office entrance, adjacent to the food gallery.
Photo from CF Polo Park Guest Services.

In November 2023, Zara also opened a location In the main level of the former Sears bullding,
situated In Apple Court (formerly Sears court).

Skylight project

At the turn of the decade, CF Polo Park began work on the skylights throughout the mall. This
Included replacing existing panes and sealant, as well as adding new windows where there
previously were none. The new skylights allow more natural light Into the mall.

This process removed the drywall panels and fluorescent lights that llluminated them. The
decorative flag poles atop the glass domes from the 1986 expansion were also dismantled at this
time.

Centre court skylights during {left) and after construction (right).
Photos from CF Polo Park Guest Services.



COVID-19
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Top: Centre court during COVID-15. Plants spaced to encourage social distancing.
Botfom: Food gallery closed during COVID-13,
Photos from CF Polo Park Guest Services.



In the early 2020s, the unprecedented nature of the COVID-19 pandemic led CF Polo Park to
Implement measures to decrease Its spread. The food gallery seating was closed and briefly
removed In accordance with local guidelines. During this period, the food gallery vendors
operated as take-out and delivery only.

Throughout the mall, staff Installed directlonal signage and decals encouraging soclal distancing.
The mall also worked with retallers to establish a curbside pickup program so customers could
safely purchase Items.

When local restrictions tightened, CF Polo Park entered a state of semi-lockdown, where only
essential retallers remained open. Over the course of the next two years, the provincial
government continued to make adjustments to the restrictions, eventually loosening them. The
maljority of the public health orders ended by early 2022.

Reitmans returns

In April 2023, CF Polo Park welcomed back one of our original tenants: Reltmans. They opened
thelr new store on the upper level, close to Hudson's Bay, In a combined space formerly
occupled by Browns Shoes and Godiva Chocolates.

The Future of CF Polo Park
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Proposed development showing the west side & Entrance #2



Aerial view of the proposed development.

On January 12 2023, Cadillac Falrview announced the next phase of developing the CF Polo Park
property.

A news release stated, “CF and Shindico have collaborated on a renewed Master Plan vision for
CF Polo Park and the surrounding lands bounded by Portage Avenue, St. James Street, St
Matthews Avenue, and Empress Street. The Polo Park lands encompass 84 acres, Including the
vacant former Canad Inns Stadium, and the Master Plan vision will create a complete community
Including a mix of residential, amenity and retall uses, a range of new parks, open spaces, a
combination of private and public streets, as well as pedestrian and cycling connections cenired
around CF Polo Park, the largest shopping centre In Manitoba.”

This ambitious development will completely transform the area around the mall. The most
noticeable features are the replacement of many ground-level parking lots with walkable paths,
green space, and new mixed-use bulldings.

Construction Is set to begin at the Plaza at Polo, and will continue throughout the rest of the
property In the coming years.

Polo Park Videos

Here Is a collection of historical videos pertaining to Polo Park and the surrounding areas. Click
the link to open the video In a new tab. Select the highest avallable quality for the best viewing
experlence.



Commercials

1979 - Polo Park Christmas commerclal, from Retrowinnipeg

1986 - “Share the Excltement” Grand reopening commerclal, from probnot
1989 - 30th Anniversary “Still the One” commerclal, from RetroWinnipeg
1990s - Winnlpeqg Ford ad. featuring Polo Park exterlor, from Manltoba Video
1991 - Polo Park Christmas commercial, from VHSHD

19596 - “Still the One™ Polo Park commerclal, from probnot

Home videos

e Excerpts from "Winnlpeg Scenes 1958 to 1968" by Tom Wood
Features CJAY TV bullding, construction of the MTS building In the early 19605,
Folo Park as an open air centre, Polo Park as a single storey enclosed mall, retall
window displays, rides and Christmas display In 1968.

s Excerpts from from “1960's Winnipeq Life” by Kert Gartner
Features Polo Park during the mid-1960s, showing east entrance before the east
wing, centre court, Ice skating performance at Winnipeg Arena.

s Excerpts from "Winnipeg, 1997" by Oleq Korzun
Featuring Winnlpeg Stadium, Winnipeg Arena, Winnlpeg Velodrome, and Polo
Park Shopping Centre exterior In 1997.

Then and Now

Below are a serles of Images comparing the CF Polo Park and Its surrounding property from
different time periods to how It appears today!






Aerial of Polo Park, looking northeast.
Top: Raocetrack, photo from Vintage Winnipeg.
Bottom: Polo Park Shopping Centre in 2015, Google Maps.



Q161 g 9

.-'-H L
]




Three views fowards centre court from the south wing, including 66 Offices stairs.
The stairs were relocated to the middle of the hall in 1986.
Early 1960s (top), 1970s (middle), 2022 (bottom)
Top and bottom photos from CF Polo Park archives,
middle photo from University of Manitoba digital collections



View of centre court looking northeast circa 19639 (left), and 2023 (right)
Left photo from Archives of Manitoba via Retro 58 James
Right photo from CF Polo Park Guest Services.






Three views towards centre court from the north wing, Top: 1955, middle: circa 1968—1973,
bottom: 2022,
From CF Polo Park archives



View of centre court from second level, late-1980s= (left), and late-2010s (right).
Left image from University of Manitoba digital collections.
Right image from CF Polo Park Guest Services.



Stairs outside the food gallery near the second level Sears entrance
Late-1980s= (top), and late-2010= (boftom).
Top image from University of Manitoba digital collections
Bottom image from CF Polo Park Guest Services,



Upper level facing north, before and after the spiral staircase & escalator remowval,
1980z (top), and 2022 (bottom).
Top image from CF Polo Park archives.
Bottom image from CF Polo Park Guest Services,



The Holidays

The holldays are always a speclal time at shopping malls, and CF Polo Park Is no different. Since

Its open air era, the mall has celebrated the holidays with seasonal displays, Santa pictures, and
more!

Here's a look at the holidays at Polo Park over the years.

Canada’s Tallest Santa Claus (1959—1963)

‘TALLEST’

SANTA
CLAUS

Is Waiting To Meet
The Kiddies At

POLO PARK

Thioumards of Maaitebans aw beng tholled sach
day by pur gant 16 faar Santa Claus. whe fella,
writes and Balers Bo the Cheibman withes of
sty eyl youngsten

Santa’s helper — Brian the Clown a'so has & free
hag of camdy for wveny iddie sccompan ed by an
adult

The Santa Claus display during the open air era.
Winnipeg Tribune, 1958,
Image from Retro 5t Jomes.

In the mall’s open air days, Polo Park displayed a sixteen-foot Santa Claus. It was set up In the
north wing of the mall. This gigantic Santa prop actually spoke to guests, likely via a speaker
system with a hidden operator.

During this perlod, the oversized Santa Claus was also accompanied by a display of large
animated toy flgures.
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Open air era Polo Park holiday advertisements.
Winnipeg Free Press, November 17 1960 (lefi)
Winnipeg Tribune, December 2 19589 (right)




Centre court tree (early 1960s)
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Centre court during the holidays in 1963, Roof construction was still ongoing.
From Vintage Winnipeg.

After the mall became enclosed, the holiday display was set up In centre court. It consisted of a
large Christmas tree surrounded by gifts. It appears that during this time, the fountaln was
drained to accommodate the display.
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Advertisement for holiday shopping at Polo Park featuring an illustration of the tree display.
Winnipeg Free Press, December 11 1963.

During the 1960s, Polo Park would sometimes Incorporate camival rides Into the holiday
celebrations, bringing In small attractions to entertain familles and children.

Santa’s igloo (late 1960s to 1970s)

In the late ‘60s, Polo Park featured an Igloo Santa set with animated characters and animals. This
was displayed In centre court near the fountain.




Santa’s igloo display and animated figures.
From rrob167 on Youlube.

Interior shots of Polo Park featuring small rides during the holidays.

From rrobl167 on YouTube



Santa’s Magic Castle and Santa express (late 1970s)

Santa’s Magic Castle (left), and the miniature Santa express train (right).

As featured in g 1979 television advertisement. From RetroWinnipeg.

During the late 1970s and early 1980s, Polo Park’s holiday display consisted of a large Santa
castle set as well as a minlature train set to entertain guests.

This also Included the addition of a children’s play area In the form of the Merry Mushroom Slide
located Just outside of Sears, as well as a ‘Lady Bug’ carnival ride.



The Merry Mushroom Slide, as featured in a 1979 television advertisement.

From RetroWinnipeg.



Closeup of the train display from the 1970s.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.



‘Lady Bug’ carnival ride just north of centre court during the holidays, lafe 1970s.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.
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Winnipeg Tribune, November 10 1978

New Santa castle (1986—1990s)

Angles of centre court with the 1986 holiday display.
Photos from University of Manitoba digital collections.

Following the 1986 renovation, Polo Park had several carousel and toy-themed holiday
decorations In addition to a brand new Santa’s castle. Wreaths and other seasonal decor were
placed throughout the shopping centre.



Winnipeg Free Fress, December 18 1586.
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Holiday decor. Looking towards centre court on the main floor from Entrance #4, late-1980s.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.



New Santa castle and Polo Bear (1990s to 2000)

The new Santa castle display and Polo Bear in 1994
Photo from CF Polo Park archives




Polo Bear and his display during the 1996 holiday season
Winnipeg Free Press, photographer Marc Gallant
Crriginally published November 19 1956

Polo Bear was a ten-foot-tall animated display plece In Polo Park's holiday setup during the
1990s. Polo put on hourly shows, singing songs and reading storles. He was controlled by a
performer In a hidden operator box equipped with a two-way mirror.

The display utllized a unique Santa castle with white towers, golden spires, and multicoloured
stripes and streamers. Large elf or “pixle” figures accompanied Polo Bear, perched on the castle

set and suspended from the celling nearby.

Polo Park offered gliveaways of minlature Polo Bear plush toys during this period.
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Winnipeg Free Press, December 11933,
Polo Bear was likely a custom plece bullt for Polo Park's holiday displays. He was used
Interchangeably as both a bear dressed In a Santa sult and as an Easter Bunny, equipped with
ears and a tall. He was placed alternately In Sears court, centre court, and the north hallway
depending on the occaslon. He was so big, his head alone required up to four people to carry!

Polo Bear also appears as an lllustration on the Santa picture cards from this era.

In November 1998, Polo Bear was accompanled by a smaller bear named Polo Junior.
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Polo Bear on the 1990s Santa picture card (left)
Polo Junior, hard at work during the off-season (right)
Left scan from CF Polo Park Guest Services.
Right photo from CF Polo Park archives.



He arrives today at &:30 pm, but
come early to welcome Polo Bear

and his new friend at 6 pm. STILL THE ONE
for Christuras

Advertisement for Santa’s arrival, Polo Bear, and Polo Junior.
Winnipeg Free Press, November 12 1998

The Polo Bear display was retired after his Easter Bunny performance of 2000 and placed Into
storage. Later, Polo Bear along with Polo Junior were given to the Manitoba Children's Museum.
Unfortunately, after contacting the museum, It appears the bear props are no longer In thelr
possession.

Santa’s castle (2000—2016)

SANTA ARRIVES AT
PoLO PARK TODAY

Santa's slebgh is arrivimng ab Powo Paek todlny at 130 e
We've given him a new castle, and you'ne imatecl
to the Hoase VWarming! The first 500 visitors
will recene a Frec |:Iu-.-.. 1 iailby Sanda

Advertizement for the new Sanfa castle display.
Winnipeg Free Press, November 12 2000.

e |
Santa’s castle in the early 2000s.
Photos from John Henry Creations Inc.

The Santa castle used throughout the 2000s and early-2010s was supplied by John Henry
Creatlons Inc. It originally comprised four outer walls that gulded the queue around a central



bullding with puppet vignettes depicting Santa's elves. It had five multicoloured spires and two
red roofs. It also utilized the fence from the previous Polo Bear display. This large castle was
erected In Sears court.

Eif vignettes in the early 2000s Santa setup.
Photos from John Henry Creations Inc.
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The new Santa Castle as illustrated on the 2000s Santa picture card.
Image from CF Polo Park Guest Services.



Over time, the display was reduced to only the front section of the castle. This section recelved a
new paint job and would continue to be used untll the mid-2010s. After the removal of the centre
court fountaln, the Santa castle was constructed In front of the glass elevator.

Santa’s castle in centre court, 2006,
Photo from CF Polo Park archives,

In 2007, the Santa castle was placed on the other side of centre court. The expanded space
allowed for a much larger Santa setup Including a park for families, complete with a new
animal-themed fence, tree props, tables, and a television playing seasonal movies.



< >
Santa’s castle and Santa’s park in 2007
Photos from CF Polo Park archives.

In 2010, the Santa castle display once again recelved a new fence, paint, lights, and carpeting.
This would remain the holiday setup until It was retired In 2016. Through this period, the holiday

display was assembled and maintained by Creating A Scene Inc.



Santa’s castle following its makeowver.

Photo from Creating A Scene Inc.



Santa’s cabin (2016—present)

Santa’s cabin in November 2016.
Photo from CF Polo Park archives.

In 2016, Cadillac Fairview replaced the Santa castle with a triangular cabin display. Accompanying
this setup were a serles of large reindeer props covered In lights. This Is the current display and
has been used every year since 2016 with the exception of 2020, when Santa pictures were not
avallable due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

In addition to the cabin display, large wire omaments decorated In lights were also placed around
the mall, Including one that patrons could walk through. Hanging llluminated pinecone props also
decorated the south entrance. These pleces continue to be our current set of holiday
decoratlons.



Hanging reindeer decorations in centre court,
Photo from CF Polo Park Guest Services.
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Santa’s cabin display during the 2021 holiday season.

The smaller reindeer were dressed in face masks to encourage COVID-19 safety.
Photos from CF Polo Park Guest Services.
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Thank you for your time and Interest In the history of CF Polo Park!

Compiled by Alex Homade, CF Polo Parlke Guest Services.
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